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BEF(RE THE
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Roswell, New Mexico
April 16, 1958

Application of Standard 01l Company of lexas for the
creation of the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Pool and for
the adoption of temporary special pool rules for said:
pool. Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks an:
order creating the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Pool,Town-:
ship 18 South, Range 26 East, zddy County, New lMex- ¢
ico, and adopting temporary special pool rules for s
sald pool providing for 320-acre spacing with fixed
well locations and such other rules as the Comuission:
may deem propere. :

ve 0t e

CASE N(¢

BEFORE?:
Honorable Edwin L. Mechem
}Tro Ao L. POI"heI‘
HMr. Murray Morgan

YRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

MR. PORTER: Next case to be considered is Case 1419.

MR. PAYNE: Application of Standard 01l Ccmpany of Texas
for iLis creation of the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Pool and for the
adoption of temporary speclal pool rules for said pool.

MR. KELLAHIN: If it please the Commission, Jason Kella-
hin of Kellahin and Fox repfesenting the applicant. I would also
1ike to enter the appearance of Robert F. Fox of Santa Fe. We havd

two witnesses to be sworn.

(Witnesses sworn)
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MR. KELLAHIN: I would like to call as our first uitnessw
Mr. M. R. Stipp.

M. R. STIPP

a witness, of lawful age, having been first duly sworn on oath, tesﬁ
tified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. KELIAHIN:
Will you state your name, please?
M. R. Stipp.
By whom are you employed, Mr. Stipp?
Standard 0il Company of Taes. |

What position?

» O P O > O

I am district geologist for the Roswell district, south-|
eastern, New Mexico.

Q You have never testified before the New ifexico 0il Con-
servation Commission? ' A I have not.

8 Mr, Stipp,what is your edication and cxperience?

ct

A Bducstod at University of Califoranis Los Angelss and

o0

the University of Tulsa from which I graduated in 1948 with a
Bachelorts degree in geology. I went to work for 3tandard 01l
Company of Texas at that time.

Q As a geologisi?

A BAs a geologist. I have been working iIn charge of the
company!s exploratory efforts in southern New Mexico for the past

six years.

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
INCORPORATED
GENERAL LaAw REPORTERS
ALBUQUERQUE. NEW MEXICO
3-6691 5-9546




Q Are you familliar with the application which has been e
filed in this casse? A I am, sir.
Q Are you f#miliar with the area involved in this applica-
tion?
A T am familiar with the area.
Q How did you become familiar with that?
A The area was purchased at my recommendation, approximatelly, g
E 1953.

Q Are the witness! qualifications acceptable? ;
MR. PORTER: Yes, sir, they are.
Q Now, referring to what has been marked as Exhibit No. 1,
Mr. Stipn, will you state what that is?
A Exhibit No. 1 is the most lefthand map on the display
bocrd.s It is a lease hold map of what we originally termed our
South Artesia area in Township 18 South, Range 26 East.

Q Does that 1lnclude the Pennsylvanian formation which is

included in the application? : A That is correct.

Q Does that Exhibit show the location of the discovery Hel}
in that area?

A Yes, it does. If I may point out, i+ is 660 from West,
1980 from south, Section 1L, Towrcnip 18 South, Range 26 ifast.

Q Now, have you mad~< a location of a proposed well to be
drilled?

A Yes, sir. We have filed that one with the Commission as

a proposed location. HNo activity has been started to date other
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than staking the location. It is located 1650 from south line and
1980 from east llne, Section 15.

Q Now, on Exhibit No. 1, there are two areas ocutlined in
red. What are those, Mr. Stipp?

A Those are the proposed gas units as indicated in the ordpr.

Q@ Do you know whether the ownership in those units has beehn

pooled or not?

A Yes, sir, they have been.

Q@ Now, referring to what has bee.; marked as Exhibit No. 2,
what is that designed to show? |

A Exhibit No. 2 is basically a contour map orn the top of

ez

the present Penngylvanian -- if I may jump ahead here, it is con-

tour:d as indicated on Exhibit No. 2 at the base of the Pennsylvan-

lan and top of the Mississippian. It is a correlation point that

we are able to carry in our geological work in this area. Overlay-
] . ing the contour map, colored in yellow, is a trend of‘lower Pennsyl#
vanian Sand. The up depth limit, as marked on hevre, is a wedgeout
in the subsurface of the productive sand.,

Q Now, you say that was contoured on thc bass of the Femmsyl-
vanian. How was that picked, Mr. Stipp?

A Those points from which the contours were drawn were

picked on the electric logs with additional interpretations given
oy szmple logs which are made from cuttinsg and cores.
Q Well, now, does that exnivit reflect the oresence of 2

continuous sand body, in your opinion?
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2t hand, 1t 1s continuous and vresent taroughout.

A The contour map is strictly a mep with reference to sea
level on a correlatable point that appears at the base of the
Pennsylvanian. The yellow coloring indicates our impression of the
continuity of that sana.

€ Well, is the sand present in other wells as shown by
your exhlbitv?

A There --

Q@ Stratographic intervals?

A There are approximately six wells controlling the posi-
tion of this northeast-southwest trend of sand. Bach of those six
wells has that pariticular sand in it.

Q At approximately =--

A At spproximately that same stratographic position.

Q@ Now, did you make aix examination of cuttings and cores?

A Yes, sir, we have. We have viewed the cores and the
cuttings from all of those wells and f£ind them tobe relatively con-

sistent in nature.

2 An

(=7

in your ovinion, are they the same sand?

A In our opinion, they are the same zand.

@ flow, in your opinion, is the Pemmsylvanian sand present
and continuous throughout Sections 1 and 15, then?

A In my opinion, conslistent with the information we nhave

i Low, referring to what nns baen marksd as sxhibit Ho.o 3,

will you zltale wnat tiat 1s?
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and radioactive logs for eight wells in northern Eddy County and
extreme western Lea County, New Mexico. It covers a distance of
approximately tnirty miles in a northeast-southwest orientation.

Q@ Is that shown by an insert map which appears on the 1x-
hibit?

A An ihsert map of the exhibit indexes the location of the
various wells.

Q@ Now, what comment do you have to make in connection with
that Exhlbit, Mr. Stipp?

A PFirst of all, let me caution you that these wells are not
placed on here in regard to distances between them, they are simply
arranged for convenience sake, and no relative distance is indicated
here. The main objéct that I may point out here is the continuity
of a sand trend in the lower Pennsylvanian, but it appears in five
of the eight wells on the cross section. A secondary sand above
that appears in four and probably five of those wells.

Q Now, in addition to the wells shown on Exhibii HNo. 3,
tnere are some wells closer to the discovery well, are there not?

A There are two producing wells in the Red Lake Pennsyl-
vanian Pool that are closer.

¢ low, referring to Exhibit ro. ki, what does that show?

A EZxhibit No. i is composed of a cross section, being

three electric logs; the Standard of Texas nNo. 1 Zvereston the lefd

=4

and the two gss producing wells or the Humnle Ne. i, and Chuck Brui

A Exhibit No. 3 is a cross section showing various electrip
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units.

Q@ Where are those two latter wells located?

A The latter two wells are approximately four to five milgs
northeast from the Standard of Texas well.

Q@ Now, does that Exhibit show information from which you
can conclude a continuous sand body is present?

A The Zxhibit shows correlations which in our geological
opinion are irrefutable that the zones as marked carry through ang
that the sand is one and the same.

Q Now, on the basis of that information, would you say tth
the sand is continucus and present through Sections 1if and 15 in
Township 18, Range 26 East?

A& This is a matter of extrapolation. There is a distance
of five miles there. Our impression and interpretation is that it
continues to the southwest and weat as such that 1t would cover all
of Sections 1l and 15.

Q Now, upon the drilling o this projected well, you would
have additional information from which you could state a better
conclusion, would you not? A That is true, sir.

Q Is tnere anything else you care to add to your comments,
Mr. Stipp?

A I would like to add that on wxhibit 3 we have shoun the
sand to be in the same relative vosition. I do not mean to indieate
that it is continuous throusnout the thirly miles, thne trend of the

sand zone is continuous. Thsre may Lo breaks In the sand itscl! ov
<
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in the permeability of the sand.
Mh. KELLAHIN: That's all the guestions we have,
MR. PORTER: Anyone have a question of Mr. Stipp? Mr.
Nutter.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. NUTTER:

Q Mr.Stipp, is this -- on your Exhibit No. lj -- is this
well on the lef t-hand side of the Exnibit the subject well that hag
been completed in the gas -- A That is correct.

Q I notice on this Exhibit that the drilistem ﬁest indi-
cates quite a bit of oil. v

A That was condensate, sir, and later production tests re-
vealed‘there to be -- if I may take some of the ehgineer's words

here, -- I believe it is eleven barrels per minute on the productid

test.
Q This is after somas production on it?
A Yes, sir.
Q £fleven barrels per minute per cubic foot?
A Yes.
Q@ You haven'!t tested as to the permeahility of the sand,

and such as that?
A I would prefer lr. Graham testify to that.
M. HUTTER: That is all.

REDIRECT WXAMINATION

L

38Y MR. KELLAHIN:
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Q NMr. Stipp, ere Exhibits 1 through L Prepared by You or 1
under your direction and Supervision?

A They were.

Q I would 1like to offer at thig time Exhibits 1 thirough )
in evidence.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY ﬁR. DUNNs
MR. DUNN: Davig Dunn, with Union 0i1 Company. Mr. Stipp,

would you glve us the approximate thickness of the sands in the
three wells shown on your Exhibit lo. Li?

A Yes, sir. They are approximate ly forty reet thick,

Q In all casesg? A Tn all cases.,

Do you have an estimate on the thickness of that porous

nature in the three wells on that section?

A I do not have any data as to the
Humble wells.

MR. DUNN: That is a1, ’

MR. NUPTER: Well, is the entire j0-

foot section bermeablle ?

A  The Standard of Texasg Well, on t

approximately 35 feet are por

he basis of the microlo 'y

ous and Dermeable,

e NUITER: 35 out or hoo A Yes, sip,
MR. NUTTER: Inank you,

M. PORTER: Any other quegtions of the Withnegs? You mal

Lo

be excussd.

~\’\_
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quaiifications as an engineer, i{ir. Graham?

in 1949 with a Bachelor of Science degree in petrolsum engineering
Since that time I have been employed by the Standard 0il Company of]
Texas iIn various capaéities; a8 drilling engineer, oroduction en-

gineer, district engineer, productlon foreman, and I am now senior

(Witness excused)

MR. KELLAHIN: Call Mr. Graham, please.
Je. R. GRAHAM
a witness, of lawful age, having been first duly sworn on oath, tege

tifled as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Q@ Will you state your name, please?

A J. R. Graham.

By whom are you employed, IMr. Graham?
Standard 01l Company of Texas.

What is your position?

» o > O

I am senior engineer for the Standard 0il Company of

Texas.

Q@ Where are you located? A Houston,

Q@ Have jyou ever testified before the New Mexico 0il Con-

servation Commission?
A No, sir, I have not.

Q@ Would you briefly state your education, expericncs

and

A Yes, sir. I graduated from Louisiana State University

11
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engineer for the company.
MR. KBLLAHIN: Are the witness! qualifications acceptabl
MR. PORTER: Yes, sir, they are.

Q Now, Mr. Graham, are you famillar with the application
which has been filed in this case?

A Yes, sir, I am.

Q Have completion data on the Everest No. 1 Well been filed]
with the Commission?

A Yes, sir, it has.

Q@ Will you briefly outline for the record tne compisiion
information on that well?

A All right, sir. The EverestNo. 1 Well was drilled to an
actual depth of 10,542 feet which is a minus 7,199 feet, plugged
back to 9,267 feet minus 6,925; The casing program is as follows:
13 3/8 and 1,208 feet wita 1,46l sacks. Circulation was to the
cellar; 9 5/8 and 3,000 feet with 1,500 sacks <circulated at approx
mately 130 sacks. 7-~inch casing was cemented at 9,370 feet, which
is a subsea of 6,027 feet, cemented with 600 sacks. Top of cement
by temperature survey on Lhe T-inch was 7,158 feet., The well was
perforated in the lower Pennsylvanian sand. Perforabions are from
9,079 feet to 9,085 feet; from 9,089 feet to 9,093 feet, and from
9,095 to 9,116 feet. A back pressure test was conducted on the wel
on October 2nd, 1957, with a calculated open flow of 23,000,000,
The gas liquid ratio on the test was 90,840 cublc feet per barrel.

The gravity of the condensate was 55.8 degrees API.

b7
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Q Are any core analysis available from this well?

143

Yes, sir. We have a full hole core analysis.

Has that been marked as Exhibit No. 572

» o

Yes, sir.

MR. KELLAHIN: We nave only one copy of the report anal:—

sis available and the witness will submit it as soon as he has cam-
pleted his direct testimony.

Q (By Mr. Kellanin) Now, what interval was cored on this
well, Mr. Graham?

A A full hole core analysis; 9,070 feet to 9,08l feet, of
which 11 feet were recovered and analyzed. We have side-wall cored
in the interval 9,079 to 9,006 feet. The average permeability in
the 11 feet cored in the upper interval was 51 milidarcies. The
average porosity in this same 11 feet was 95 percent. The average
poroslity in the entire 33 feet that we iInterpret to be productive,
or net pay, is 18.9 percent, using both side wall samples and the
full hole core.

Q@ In addition to this, did you make any calenlations on
'reserve, Mr. Graham?

A Yes, sir.

Q What other information d4id you use in connsction with
that calculation?

A We used a bottom hole pressure at a depth of 9,065 feet,
that measure veing obtained on a drillstem test as 3,747 PSI. The

bottom nole temperature at 9,065 feet was 158 degrees Fahrennelt.
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that show?

indlcates an effective pay of 33 feet.

you made any study of the economics involved in the drilling in thi
area?

in tnis --

We used the well fluid gravity of .5617.

Porosity average for the
net pay, 18.9 percent.

Comate water average for the 33 feet of net

pay, 17.9 percent and from the microlog determined the net pay to
be 33 feset.

Q Now, referring to what nas been marked ss Exhibit No. 6,
what is that?

A That i1s a Schlumberger electrical log that we ran on the
Zverest No. 1 Well.

Q@ On that Exhibit, have yam marked tine formation teops, per
foration, casing points, and other information?

A Yes, sir, we nave,

Q Now, referring to Exhibit No. 7, the microlog, what does

& The microlog is from the Everestio. 1 Well also and it

Q liow, you stated you had made a reserve calculation. Havp

33
A Yes, sir, we nave,
Q Have you prepared a summary, as #Zxhibit uo. 3, on that
information?
A Yes, sir, we nave.
Q

Now, referring to £xhibit No. 3, what does that show?
Tnat shows that we estimate the cosgt of drilling a well

to this lower Pennsylvanian sand to be 3172,700. The
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of one over 8,500 based on reserves.

& At what prices?

A We can calculate a well price of the well fluid at eight
een cents, using sixteen cents for the gas, and approximately two
cents»for the condensats.

Q Now, based upon the Infomation which is available to
you at the present time, in your opinion, will one well effectively
and econcniically drain and develop 320 acres?

A Of course, our information at this time on the reservoiﬂ
itself is very limited. We do kiow that liie average permeability
in the 11 feet analyzed is 51 milidarcies. Bearing in mind that it
is a gas reservoir with this 51 milidarcies permeability and the
fact that we think that the two sections are underlined by the
Pennsylvanian sand, we believe that at this time that a well will
drain 320 acres, and it will drain it economically.

O Will additional information oe available within a period
cf one year?

A Ve anticipate that it will. e have indicated on Exhibj
1 a second well to be drilled, and we are now taking contracts for
thav well, or taking bids for contracts, snd plan to start that wel
within the next tuc weells, We anticipate drilling additional welld
in the area and pelieve that by the end of one year uwe will have
some additional data to base a more specific recomrcadation on.

Q Do you recomnend s temporary spacing order of 320 acres

for a periocd of cne year?

Bk G BRI G b e R s
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A We recommend a one year temporary spacing order,

& liow, the application [iled in this case recanends the
creation of a pool to be desinated as the Atoka-Il'ennsylvenian Gas
Pool. Do you have sny recommendations as to the area to vpe include
in that Pool?

A Ve are recommending the . only Sections 1l and 15 be in-
cluded at this time in the spacing ordser and in the Pool delineation.

& In yowr opinion, is all of Sections 1l and 1y, on the

basis of information mregently availahle, nroductive of zas?
A a - S o F i O~

[

A On the information thai we have at this time we -think
that it is.

Q Do you have any recommendation to make as to well spaciﬂg?

A Our first well is located 660 from one line and 1980 from
the other. We have tentatively located and have staked and located,
I should say, wur second well $90 from the closest unit line and
1980 from the east line of that unit. It is our recommendation thak
990, 1680 be adopted for this Pool.

@ In that event, 1t would require an exception for the
EveresatHo. 17

A Yes, sir, that's correcct.

¢ Do you have any recommendation to make to the Commission
as to the dirsctions that should be taken on the formation of the
drilling units?

A Ho, sir. We recoumuend that the overators be vermitted

to use any two continnous quarter sectlons either in the north-south
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% your dlrection?
A Yes» sirs they Wuere:s except ©
coursés 5 yuo LOBSe
Q And the core analysis s the core analysis o‘otaj.ned by
E, your company in the ragulal cour se of ‘ousiness‘z
t A Yes s il vy t‘nev cole La‘ooratory.
-‘ MR KELLAHIN: At this gime We offer 1N eyidence axnibitis
{ 5 gprough 8 ynclusive:
MR PORTERS ‘.Eithou’o ob_]ection, tnese nxm.bits will ©pe
i admitted.
1 pellieve you offered ghat core?
A Yes, sir.
MR e KELLARIN: onot 18 all.
cnoss BX TNATION
By MR. PORTER \
\ G e Gi-ahalils 1 don*? pellieve 1 ot your petimate of the
b coe® of completing, the welle
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We estimate, for the
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Ar, Nutter.

QUESTIONS BY MR. WUTTER:

drain 320 acres?

bility characteristics of the sand and the fact that it is a2 gas
regervolr, and 1f it underlies 320 acres,
will drain based on permeavility and characteristics of the reser-

voir and if the fluids are free to move throughout the 320 acres,

A Yes, sir, thatts right.

Q@ You say that at the end of the year you will have addi-
tional information?

A Yes, sir, we hope to. We have not signed a gas contract

well for drilling, the Martin No. 1 Well. We intend to use the gasj

both as drilling fuel and as drilling fluid, and we will obtain somp
information there, and we intend to continue ouwr drilling program ih

the ares and hope to have additional wells coripleted at the end of

the year.

@ When do you expect to complete your Martin No. 1%
A The starting date, I estimate some time in the latter

part of April, and we hope to complete it in about forty days,

MR. PORTER: Does anyone have a gquestion of Mr. Graham?

Q@ HMre. Graham, what evidence do you have that one well will

A Sir, we nave very little evidence other than the permea-

it is our ovinion that it

i
<

Are there any other pools in the southeast ieu lexico,
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‘that was a pool operated by Pan American. It is my understanding

any other gas pools, completed in this same sand?

A It is my understanding that tihe two pools to the north-
east, one being the Red Lake Pool, and the other, I belisve the =~
I cantt recall the name of it, but 1t is sbout twelve miles to ke
noctheast, 1s completed in this comparable Pennsylvanian sand, yes,
sir. Bmpire Pool, I believe, is the one that is twelve miles to
the northeast.

Q Has the Commission approved 320 acres for any of those
pools?'

A I velieve they have for tne Zmpire Pool, oun a temporary

basis. I am not sur= of the expiration of that one year order, but

that they approved an order for that pool, Empire Pool.

Q@ H™r. Graham, you haven?!t determined that the order in the
Empire Pennsylvanina Pool has expired?

A o, sir, I am not familiar with 1t other than what I
have been told. They told me they approved a one year order for
that pool. I dontt think it has expired.

MR. PORTER: I think an investigation would prove that
the order has expired.

Q@ (By Mr. Nutter) I wont o askh a couple of guestions hen
regarding the income that you have here. What is the formula that
you base your income per day on?

A well, the only basis we have at this time is a minimum

pay contract that is offered to us by the gas company, at least

e
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those are the filgures we use to determine our pay outs, and we i

usually are offered 1 to 8,500 based on reserves. In otherwords,

R

they will take one cubic feet per day per 8,500 cubic feet of re-

o b

serves. In some contracts we have 7,300 in 10,000, but we use 1

to 8,500 as the usual.

G And you have estimated your reserves under each tract
based on core analysis? 3
1 A Yes, sir. We have ostimated reserves based on core anally-

sis and other factors. The 1 to 8,500, Mr. Lutter, is an average

G g

K

daily minimum take that the zas pipeline company assures us that tth

will take when we sign a contract.

f N P |
Uldd el

sace been contracted?

B A T T P

@ Has the gas undast

A No, sir, it has not.

Q So you donftt know that the minimum take clause would be
1 to 8,500 in this particular case?

A No, sir, we dontt know that it would be 1 to §,500.

Q You dontt know that the gas purchaser will take only the

gas th@t is required by the
A That is correct.
assure us they will take, a
to calculate,
Q@ And if they take

vetter vay?

A Yes, sir, thatt's correcct.

M. WUTTER:

Thet 1s all.

minimum take clause?
Tnat is a minimun take that they will

daily average minirnmum, and we use those

more than the minimw :ake, you have a

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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QUESTIONS BY MR. UTZ:

Q What was your footage recommendation? I didntt quite get
it.

A 990 and 1980, sir. 990 from the closest unit line, 1980
from the more distant unit line.

198C from the section line, then?

Yes, sir, thatts correct.

No closer than 990 from the unit line? 3

> o > O

Yes, sir, that¥s correct.

Q@ Do you have a recommendation as to which way you would ;

vy

like these units to run?

A No, sir. I stated earlier that we had no recommendation}

that they could either go east-west or north-south, just so they ar

W

continuous quarter sections.

Q OCcnsist of a legal half section?

A Yes, sir, thatts correct.

Q Now, as to your pool delineation, you want all of the
sections, or have you recommended Sections 1l and 157

A 1l and 15, yes, sir.

Q@ Of course, thes east half of 1l and all of 15 is not yet
proven, is it?

A Yes, sir, thatts correct. It is not proven.

 Wouldntt it e more practical to include a pool of 320
acres for your precsent completed “vercstiell, and on that Pool, on

320-acre basis, a unit be approved?
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really give a final opinion on that. At this time all we have is

A Yes, sir, that would be satisfactory with us. We base
the two-section pool delineation -- that is based on our geologistt
opinion that it underlies both sections, and we are assuming that
it would be productive, but I am not familiar enough with our pro-
cedure here to know whether you take in a larger area than that al-
ready proved or not,‘so ﬁe just use the two-section because our
geologist believes it is underlain by Pennsylvanian sand.

Q@ If the gesologist proved to be wrong, they would be the
ones --

A Tes, sir, that?ts right. They have been wrong before.

M. UTZ: Thatis all I have.

QUESTIONS BY MR. COOLEY: L
Q Mr. Grahan, you shate that the only evidence you have
based the opinion that one well will drain 320 acres is on the core
analysis?
A Yes, sir, the core analysis, 51 milidarcy permeability,
mainly showing that there could be good movement of fluid in the
resgervoir and the fact that we think the sand is continuous over 32

acres. Of course, we will hove to have additiorsl information to

one well and all we can use is the permeability characteristics and
the fact that it is underlain.

& Tnis one core Involving this one small area is the only
core that has been taken in this entire pocl, is 1t not?

A Well, that?'s correct. fnese are the only permeability

DEARMLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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measurements that have been made. We have measured porosity in the|

sice walls since, but we have not measured permeability except in -

the 11 feet. That's'ﬁhe information we have.

A No, sir, not at this time. We have no reason to beliew
that there is or is not.

Q@ On your assumption that one well will drain 320 acres,
wouldntt it be necessary that you know where tihe well is located on
the 326-acre tract?

A Of courée, the best way to determine -- in ny opinion,
one of the best ways to determine 320-acre tracts is to take inter-
ference tests, but on one well you will have to assume it is drain-
ing ratably 320 acres around the well.

Q@ That's my point. Under your proposed spacing plan, I
believe, it would permit the drilling of a well 990 from the sectiagn
line and 1380 feet from the seciion line --

A Yes, slr.

Q <~ wvhich would permit the drilling of both wells in-the
singie sectlon in either the south half or the north half, would idf

not?

A Yes, sir. It would permit drilling two wells in &this
section.

@ In your opinion, would this type of spacling vattern bve
as efficient as spacing the wells one either in the northeast quar-

ter and one in the southwest guarter or one in the nortnhwest guarts

i

Q Do you have any evidence that there is not wide variatiop?

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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and one in the southeast quarter? 4sould you have betfer dralnage
in that section if you staggered your wells in that fasnion?

A Of course, the most efficient drainage would be to have
the wells equally spaced in tihe reservoir, and I would have to
answer yes to that, yes, sir.

Q Concerning the payout that you had calculated on these
wells, that being 2.7 years for 320-acre well, and 5.3 years for
160-acre well, so long as itite gas purchasers nominate given quantid
ties of gas for this particular pool, wouldntt that be 1ﬁmaterial
until such time as the area should bscome prorated?

A Yes, sir. I think it is common rracticc among operator*

to calculate payout based on reserves because companies, at least

it is my understanding, take based on reserves where you have sev-

eral pools and have to limit their takes. I think it is based on
regserves, sSo we usually calculate our payout based on reserves. I
think it is a valid calculation.

Q Well then, what is the purpose of coming at this time
with 320-acre spacing with as little evidence as we have that one
well would drain 320, why would it not be as feasible to remain on
lou~-acrs gpacing until 1t is prorated so that you can take whateven
you could sell, produce whatever you couid seil?

A I sald that initially, in a reservoir, ue look at the
takes based on reserve. If you lave o 6l0-acre unic in a o40-acre
reservolr and you have four wells in 1%, you are going to sell the

same amount of gas, in my opinion, or at least it ig my understandd
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ing, tnhat you would sell if you had two wells in the reservoir be~-
cause the gas compsny takes takes vased on reserves, taatts the
way it is.

Q Provided two wells will drein 6407

A Yes, sir, and I dontt think T can make a dogmatic state~

ment that one well will drain that. With the limited evidence we

have, we think it will.

M. COOLEY: Tunat is all.

o

Mr. Graham, according to the way I understand your foot~
age locstion recommerndation, yowr Martin No. 1 is already on a non-

standard location, is that corresct, sir?

A HNo, sir, I think we located it 990 from the north and

1980 from the east line of the section.
@ 1650 from the south line oi the section?

A Yes, sir. VWell, those are minimum distances, of course,

and I understood that you located on minimum pasis, that you are

permitted to locate at least 990 and 1980 from the lines. Iy under

L]

ate
st

ending i1s that as louy as you are Y90 from one line and 1980 from

tixe other you are witiiin spacing.

Q How close do you uvanit to come to the section line?

A 1900.
G You are 1650 on utue south 1li e nou?
A Oh, T see. Wel , 1t uguld lwave to He 1930 from the long

zloe of the unit ana 990 Lo the short side of the wiiv. 1 dontt
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56€ now you coulg locate 193¢ fro. the long sige without belng 660

from tje Snort side.

A Prop unit lineg?

Q Yes.

A Yes, Sir, that would be thie sape thine

<ilSe

Q It would f£it bettep?

Yes, slr, that would fit it.

13

KR. UTDZ: Thattg all, ‘
MR. PORT=R: Mr. Utz, T will ask yoyu a Question. What

do you mean by unit line?

FR. UTZs I mean the Proration wit,

M. PORTER: The 320-acre unit lineg®
MR, UTZ. Yes, sir,
MR. PORTER: Thani you,

Anyone elge have any questiong? Mr, Nuttep,

QUESTIU 5 3Y MR, NUTTER:
4 While we are on this, is Jour Martin Ho. 1 wWell in a
standarg location a&ccording o the Droposed ruleg?
A T juss thought ye talied aboys that, by it is mny --
Q I dontt moan the Dhrtin, the Zverests
A lo, sir, it jig not,
¢ That is an CXcevtiony

A Yegs, 8ir, we agieu that originally.

e -_N\\_\\
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HUYTER: Thank you.

1‘2‘1 -

MR. PORT=R: Any furtaer questions?

The witness may be excused.

MR. DUNN: May I asik a quation?
MR.PORTER: Yese

QUESTIONS BY MR. DUkt
Q Do you know of any well in southeastern New }Mexico or in

T VA an

-
SOALULNY  wavad sy

the vicinity of your test that is producing oil from tuls

or correlative sand?

A Sir, I know of none, if I can answer that way.

Q Let me word the gqueshtion a little differently. Are all

of the correlative sands that you are acquainted with producing

sand?
I am only acgquainted within the irmediate area of the

a

A
Everest, and I understand there is not one within fouwr wiles produc-

v

ing from this sand and that's my best knowledge of this sand, withi
four miles.
M. DUNN: Thav is all.

have a guestion? I believe yoy

MR. PORTIR: Anyone else
offered your SExhibits alrecady.
MR. KELLAHIN: Yes.
1. PORTER: The witness may be excused.

(iiitness excused)

M. PORTER: Any further testimony Lo be oresented in
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available to this pool, and the witnesses have t stiried that in

this case? Any statements?
MR. KBLILAHIN: If the Commission please, obviously, the

informmtion we have with one well available, which we thilnk is

important, I am certain, on the basis of the information which is .

their ovinion it will effectively drain 320 acres, and due to the

economics involved, and tne fact, as pointed out, that there is

not even a gas connection in there as yet, we feel a temporary order

for a period of one year is fully Jjustified until the additional
information can be obtained, at which time we will return before
the Cormission and present out testimony to show uwhetner the 320-
acre spacing should be continued or not. But meanwhile? the pool
should be developed on a wiform 320-acre pattern until such time
as the additional information is available because of the economic
situation and because of the core information and other infomation
which is available and does indicate that one well will dréin and
develop 320 acres, and development on 160 acres, in the meanwhile,
could and probably result in waste. Thank you.

M. PORTER: Anyone else have anything further to say in
this case?

MR, DUIN: Devid punn with Union Oil. Union wishes to

make the stvatement that we do not have any acrenpe in Lhie immediatd

SRy

~ - ==

vicinity of this btest. Ve do nave consideraple noldings in Eddy

e

¥

County that we consider to be prosvective of gas in the lower

Pennsylvanian. We have complebed a gas well soubh of this area a

|
4
1
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Wwill take the case under advisement and proceed -- take up next

Case 1lh2l.

CERTIFICATKEL

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
} ss
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO )

I, J. A. TRUJILLO, Notary Public in and for the County of
Bernalillo, State of New Mexico, do hereby certify that the fore-
going and attached Transcript of Proceedings before the New Mexico
0il Conservation Commission was reported by me in stenotype and
reduced to typewritten itranscript under my pversonal supervision,
and that the samc i1s a true and correct recorc .o the best of my
knowledge, skill and ability.

T
WITNESS my Hand and Seal this § day of Yh , 1958

in the City of Albuquerque, County of Bernalillo, State of HNew

Mexicoe

ﬂ{ ; Notary Pubﬁc

My Commission Expires:

Nctober 5, 1960.
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OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
P. O. BOX 871 ’

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

May 5, 1958

Mr. Jason Kellanin
P.O, Box 1713
Santz e, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Keilahin;
‘ On behalf of your client, Standard Oil Company of Texas,
wa enclose two copies of Order R-1171 issued May 5, 1958, by the

Oil Conservation Commission in Case 1419, which was heard on
April 16th at Roswell.

Very truly yours,

A. L. Porter, Jr.
Secretary - Director

Encls.




' proposed by the applicant but that it does warrant the creatiocn

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISEION
OF THE BTATE OF NEW MEXICO

CASBE NO. 1419
Ordexr ¥o. R-1171

This caune came on for heariag at § ¢'clock a.m. on April
18, 1958, at Meawsll, Nov Mexico, before the Oil Conservatiea Com-
mission of Wew Mexioe, hminttnr reforred to as the Win.'*

NOW, en this d-.yct vy, 1958, the Commissien, s
quorun beling mt cousidered thw mnutm and th
evidance adduced, and being fully advised iz the premiwes,

FINDS

(1) That due pubuo motice haviag beecn given as required
by law, the Commission bas jurisdiction of this cause and the

subject matter thereeof.

(2) That the applicant, Standard Oil Company of Texas,
seeks an order creating the Atoka-Peanaylvanian Gas Pool with
vertieal limits consisting of the Pemnsylvanian formatioa and
borizontal limits comsistiag of the W/2 Section 14 and £/2 Sectiom

15, Towaship 18 South, Range 26 East, NMPM, Eddy County, New Mexicqg.

(3} Tohat the applicant further proposes that temporary
320-acre spacing be established in the said proposed Atoka-Pemasyl -
vanian Gas Poeol,

(4) That only one well has been drilled te the Pennsyl-
vanian formation in the vicinity of the proposed Atoka-Pennsyl-
vanian Gas Pool, being the applicant's Fverest Well No. 1 in the
SW/4 of said Bection 14.

(5) That the completion of the abhove-described Everest
¥ell No. 1 does not warrant the creation of a pocvl of the magnitud

of a pool consisting of the SW/4 of said Sectionr 14.




Case No. 1419

. Order No. R-1171

(6) ‘That the applicant has uuu te preve that ome
vell will eceasmically and eificieatly draia 380-acres ia the
Ateka-Ponnsylvanian Gas Feel or that is any justification
for the establisimeat of temporary 330-acre spaciag in said pecl
in the ahsence of swch prect.

€(7) That the epevutien, spaciag, mmun.o:-m
in the Am~mxmumm-m e govermed
by Bule 104 of the Commission Rules and Degulatieas .

IT!IMM:

¥ Y 1 & saw pecl for the mreductien of gas fren the
mxmmmnmmmummm
desiguated as the Atcka-Penmsylvanian Gas Fool cseonmistiag of the
fcllowing described ares:

TOWRSHIP 18 SOUTE, RANGE 26 EAST, RNPM
Sactien T4 EW/&

(2) That the application of Staadard Ol W&oi Toxas
for the establisiment of temporary 330-acre spaciag ia Atoka-
Pemssylvanian Gas Pool, be and the same is Mereby deated.

(3) That the operatioa, spaciag, amd drilling of all
wolls in the Ateka-Peansylvanian Gas Fool simll contimms to be
govermnd hy the provisions of Rule 104 of ibe Coumissien Rules
and Regalaticas,

DORE at Santa Fe, Nev Mexico, on tlhe day and year herein-
above Jdesigaated.

BTATE OF NEW MEXICO
OIL CORSERVATIOR COMMISSION

S L pt—ou

EDWIN L. NECHEN, Chairman

MURRAY E. MORGAN, r

T C '
c/ / e P
A k}.’i . /((, & ((/O ;{’

A. L, PORTER, Jr./ MSmber & Secretary

. s o e 3 .
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BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
APPLICATIOR OF STANDARD OIL
COMPANY OF TEXAS FOR AN ORDER
CREATING AN ESTABLISHED GAS
;ggg»igg PENNSYLVANIAN PRODUC- ) .
ESTABLISHING 320-4CRE CASE Ne. 1[§Z~
GAS UNITS IN SECTIONS ik AND 15, . '
!. w S&’ R. 26 !o, EDDY COUNTY, {3
NEW MEXICO -
APTLIGATLION
2 Comes now Standard 0il Company of Texas and applies to the
Et 011 Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico for

5 an order establishing a designated gas poel for production

from the Pennsylvanian Sand of gas and gas condensate in

LML S S

Township 18 South, Range 26 East, N.M.P.M., Eddy County, New

3 Mexice to be designated as the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Poel,
and for the adoption of pool rules on a temporary basis for a
peried of one year providing for uniform spacing and establish=
; ment of 320-acre drilling units for said pool, units to consist
of adjacent guarter-sections, with well locations fixed at

\J990 feet and 1980 feet from outside boundaries of said units,

—/_\/\,_//— i ——

and for such other and further orders as the Commission may
determine proper.

In support of this application, the applicant would show
| the Commissions

f. That applicant has completed its J. H. Everest No. 1
well at a location 1980 feet from the South line and 660 feet
from the West line of Section 14, Township 18 South, Range 26
East, N.M.P.M., Eddy County, New Mexico, as a gas condensate
producer in the Pennsylvanian sand.

2. That applicant is the operator of a 320-acre tract pod -
ed in the Pennsylvanian Sand,and consisting of the W 1/2 of
Section 14, T. 18 s., R. 26 E., Eddy County, New Mexico.

| 3. That applicant is the operator of a 320-acre pooled
tract in the Pennsylvanian Sand and consisting of the S 1/2 of |

section 15, T. 18 s., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M,, Eddy County, New Mexico




k. That anplicant has numerous leases in and adjoining
Sections t4 and 15, in T. 18 S., R. 26 E., Eddy County, N. M.

5. That applicant plans to drill its Martin No. 1 well in
the W 1/% SE /% of Section 15, T. 18 S., R. 26 E., for pre-
duction from the Pennsylvanian Sand, Eddy County, New Mexico.

6. That on the basis cf information presently available,
it is belleved that one well will efficiently and economically
drain and develop 320 acres in the area involved, and that the
establishment of 320-acre drilling units for the pool is in
the inlerests of conservation, will nrevent waste, and that
correlative rights will be protected.

WHEREFORE applicant requests that this application be set
for hearing by the Commission at the regular April, 1958, hear-
ing of the Commission, or as soon thereafter as may be possible
and that after notice and hearing asprovided by law, the Com-
mission enter its order creating a new gas condensate pool for
Pennsylvanian production, fixing drilling units at 320 acres,
establishing well locations, and such other and further orders
as may be proper.

Respectfully submitted,
STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF TEXAS

By:

KELLAHIN And FOX

P. 0. Box 1713

Santa Fe, New Mexico
Attorneys for Applicant

dmm. N elladl




No. 11-58

SUPPLEMENTAL DOCKET: REGULAR HEARING APRIL 16, 1958

Qil Conservation Commission 9 a.m., Elks Club, 200 North Richardson Avenue

ROSWELL , NEW MEXICO

CASE 1424: Application of Humble Oil and Refining Company for an unorthodaox well
location. Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks an order
authorizing an unorthodox oil well location for its Federal-North Kirt-
land Unit Well No. 1 at a point 1230 feet from the North line and 998
feet from the East line of Section 19, Township 30 North, Range 14

West, San Juan County, New Mexico, said well to be drilled as a
wildcat to the Dakota formation.

TT————

April 3, 1958

ga
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. Santa Fe, New “exico
R ' April 5, 1958

0il Conservation Commission
P. 0. Box 871
Santa Pe, New Mexico

Re: Case 1419 Application of Standaml of Texas
Gentlemen: Hearing of April 16, 1958

The above captioned application provides for the
creation of the Atoka-Permnsylvania Gas Pool and to govern spacing
in Township 18 S., Range 26 E.

while I have no objection to the creation of the Pool,
I do herein register objection to the spacing of 320 acres. My
reason for this is that there are adjacent holdings too saall to
qualify under the 320 acre spacing and this would result in draining
from these holdings where drilling would not be permitted and con-
sequently no production.

It is my understanding that there is a producing oil
well in Section 14 of the above township with sufficient production
to qualify this area as an oil field, This is a deep well and it
is my understanding also that in this same township there are numerous
shallow wells being worked for oil and that any gas flows are not
being conserved but allowed to waste,

Thank you for giving consideration to this matter.

Yours very truly,

WAt

Box 93, Santa Fe
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Ex# s CAsE #1419 CORE LABORATORIES, INC

Petrolexm Reservoir Emgineering
DALLAS 1. TEXAS

September 3, 1957

REPLY TO
f. O. BOK 3¢
MIDLAND. TEXAS

Standard Oil Company of Texas
Box 1660
Midland, Texas

Attention: Mr. J. P. Jones

Subject: Core Analysis
Everest No. 1 Well
Wildcat
Eddy County, New Mexico
Location: Sec. 14-T18S-R26E

Gentlemen:

Diamond coring equipment and water base mud were used to core the
interval, 9027 to 9112 feet, in the Everest No. 1. Samples of recov-
ered formation on which analysis was desired were selected as directed
by representatives of Standard Oil Company of Texas, were quick~
frozen to preserve fluid content, and were transported to the Hobbs
laboratory for analysis. Percussion type side wall samples were taken
between 9076 and 9116 feet, and these samples were analyzed for poros-
ity and fluid content at the Monahans laboratory. The results of all
analyses are presented in this report.

Pennsylvanian formation analyzed between 9070 and 9084 feet exhibits
favorable residual liquid saturations, and is interpreted to be gas pro-
ductive at points of measurable permeability. The average permeabil-
ity of the 11 gas productive feet in this zone is 51 millidarcys, and the
total observed natural productive capacity is 581 wmillidarcy-feei, prob-
ably adequate to support satisfactory rates of production without the
necessgity for treatment. The average porosity of this interval is 9.5
per cent, and the average empirically calculated connate water satura-
tion is 30 per cent of pore space. Average core analysis data for this
interval have been summarized on page one.

B e

i B




Standard Oil Company of Texas Page Two
Everest No. 1 Well

Results of the analysis of side wall samples taken at various depths be-
tween 9076 and 9116 feet are presented in tabular and graphical form
on the lower portion of the Completion Coregraph.

We sincerely sppreciate thies opportunity to be of service to you and trust

-

that the information furnished with this report will prove useful in mak-
ing a preliminary evaluation of the Pennsylvanian formation analyzed

from this well.

Very trhly yours,

Core Laboratories, Inc.

RS 6‘7’“‘“"“’9'"(?5)

R. S. Bynum, Jr.,
District Manager
RSB:JDJ:sw
7 cc. - Addressee
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Form F-1iB

CORE LABORATORIES, INC.
Petrolewm Reservoir Engingering
DALLAS. TEXAS

Page 1 of | File WP-3-860 FC
Wel Everest No. 1

CORE W AND CALGUI.ATED RECOVERABLE DIL
FORMATION NAME AND DEMTH WNTERVAL:  Pennsylvanian 9070.0-9084.0

CEY OF CORE RECOVERED FlaN ] AVERASE TOTAL WATER SATURATION: :
P ABL APy ‘ 14,0 Sen CENY OF PORE SPACE 30.9
1
anE AVERAGE CONNATE WATCR SATURATION: ‘
THELUDES 1N AVERADES 11.0 PER CENT OF PORE SPACE {c) 30
AVERADE PERMEABILITY! VITY: ®AP)
MILLIDARGYS 51 o aRAviTY
PRODUGTIVE CAPACITY: 561 DRIGINAL BOLUTION BAS-OIL RATIS:
MILLIGARTY-PEET CURIC FELT PER BARREL
' ORIGINAL FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR: BARRELS
AVERALE POROBITY: FER CENT 9.5 BATURATED DIl PER BARREL STOCK-TANK Ol
AVERAGE REBIDUAL OIl. SATURATION: 0.0 CALCULATED ORIBINAL STOCK-TANK OiL N PLABE:
SER CENT OF POGRE BPACK - SARRELS PER AGRE-FOOT
Calculated maximum solution gas drive recovery is barrels per acre-foot, assuming production could be

continued until resexvoir pressure derlined to zero psig. Calculated maximum water drive recovery is
barrels per acre-foot,assuming full maintenance of original reservoir pressure, 100% areal and vertical coverage,
and continuation of production to 100% water cut. (Please refer to footnotes for further discussion of recovery estimates.)

FORMATION NAME AND DEPTH INTERVAL:

FEET OF CORE RECOVERED FROM AVERAGE TOTAL WATER SATURATION:

ASOVE INTERVAL PER CENT OF PORE SPACE

FEEY OF CORE AVENAGE CONNATE WATER SATURATION:

INCLUDED IN AVERAGES PER CENY OF PORE SPACE

AVERAGE PERMEABLILITY: OIL BRAVITY: ®AP] |

M LIDARCYS

PRODUCTIVE CAPACITY: SGRIQINAL BQLUTION QAB-OIL RATIO:
MILLIDARCY-FEXY CUBIC FEET PER BARKEL

QRIGINAL FORMATION VOLUME FACTQR: BARRELR

AVERAGE POROBITY: PER CENT SATURATED O)i. PER BARREL STOCK-TANK DiL

AVERADGE RESIDUAL OIL BATURATIDN: CALCULATED ORIBINAL 8TOCK-TANK Qit. IN PLADE: i

PER CENT OF POGRE BPACE BARRELS PER ACRE-FDOT g

Calculated maximum solution gas drive recovery is barrels per acre-foot., assuming production could be

continued until reservoir pressure declined to zero psig. Calculated maximum water drive recovery is
barrels per acre-foot,assuming full maintenance of original reservoir pressure, 1007 areal and vertical coverage,
and continuation of production to 1009. water cut. (Please refer 1o footnotes for furthes discussion of recovery estimates.)

B o e

{¢) Cairulated {e) Estimated (m) Measured (*) Refer 10 attached letter.

These vecovery estimates represent theoretical maximum values for solution gas and water drive. They assume that production is
Harted at original veservoir presiure; i.e., no account is taken of production to date or of prior drainage to other areas. The cgcd: of
factors tending 10 veduce acsual ultimate recovery, such as economic limits on oil production rales, gas-oil vatios, or water-os satios,
bave not been taken into account. Neither have factors been considered which may reswlt in actwal recovery intermediate between solu-
tion gas and complete water drive recoveries, suck s fa cap expaniion, gravity drainage, or partial water drive. Detailed predictions
of uitimate oil recovery to specific abandonment conditions may be made in an engineering study in which considesation is given to
overall reserveir characteristics and sconomic factors.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidentis! use,
this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Core Laboratories, Inc. (all errors snd omissions excepted); but
Core Laboratories, Inc., and its officers and employeer sssume no responsibility ai.d make 10 warranty or representation as to the productivity, proper aperation,
or profitableness of soy oif, gas or other minersl well or sand in connestion with which such repor( is used or reiied upen



Area, acres

Fumber of wells

Total investment, dollers

Gas reserves,

Liquid reserves, tarrele

Total ges production, MCFPD
Gross W.I. income, dollsrs/dey
Gross R.I. income, dollars/day

Payout, years
Rate of return,

“Profit to jnvestment ratio

Chase 1417

345,400

R S My

£
160

172,700
6,100

k5,900
715

-

16

5-3
19
1.8
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BeFRE THE
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSIOwn
Roswell, New Mexlco
April 16, 1958

Application of Standard Qil Company of Texas for the
creation of the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Pool and for
the adoption of temporary special pcel rules fer said:
pool. Applicant, in the above-styled cause, seeks an:
order creating the Atoka-Pemnsylvanian Gas Pool,Toun-
ship 13 South, Range 25 uast, sddy County, hew iex-
ico, and adopting temporary speclal pool rules for
sald pool providing for 320-acre spacing with fixed
well locations and such other rules as the Commission
may deem proper.
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BHEFORE:
Honorable kdwin L. idechem
I‘h‘o Ao Lo POI‘teI’
FMr. Murray lMorgan

TRANSCRIFT OF PRQCLEEIINGS

MR. PORTER: Next case to be considered is Case 1419.

. PAYWE: Application of Standard 01l Company of Texs
for the creation of tine Atoka-Peunsylvanian das Pcel end for the
adoption of Gtemporary special vool rules for saild pool.

MR. KELLAHIN: If it please the Commission, Jason Kella-o
hin of Ketlshin and Pox representing the applicant. T wonld also
like Lo enier the appearance ol Hooeri r. Fox oi santa Fe. We havy
two witnesgses to be sworn,

(Wltnesses sworn)

CASH HQ.1l19

S
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MR. KELLAHIN: I would like to call as our first witness
Mr. M. R. Stipp.

H. R. SEIPP

a witness, of lawful age, having been first duly sworn on oath, tesy

tified as follows:
DIRECT BXAMINATION

BY MR. KELLAHIN:

Will you state your name, please?

M. R, Stipp.

By whom are you employed, Mr. Stipp?

Q
A
Q
A Standard 0il Company of Texas.
Q@ What position?

A

I am district geoclogist for the Roswell district, south-

eastern, New Mexico.

Q You have never testified before the New Mexico 0il Con-

servation Commission? A I have not.
S Mr. Stipp,what 313 vour edication and experience?

A Educated at University of California at Los Angeles and
the University of Tulsa from which I graduated in 1948 with a
Bachelorts degree in geology. I went to work for Jtandard 01l
Company of Texas at that time.,

Q@ As a geologist?
A As a geologist. have been working in charge of the

companyt!s exploratory efforts in southern llew iexlico for the past

six years.

DEARNLEY . MEjER & ASSOUIATES
INCGRPORNTED
GeENERAL Lawm M
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Q Are you familiar with the application which has been

filed in this case? A I am, sir.

Q Are you familiar witn the area involved in this applica-

tion?

A I am familiar with the arsa.

Q AHow did you become familiar with that?

A The area was purchased at my recommendation, approximately,
1953.

Q@ Are the witness' qualifications acceptable?

MR. PORTER: Yes, sir, they are.
Q HNow, referring to what has been marked as Exhibit No. 1,
Mr. Stipn, will you state what that 1is?
A Exhibit No. 1 is the most lefthand map on the display
board. It is a lease hold map of what we originally termed our
South Artesia area in Township 18 South, Range 26 East.

Q Does that include the Pennsylvanian formation which is

inciuded in the application? A 'That is correct.

=

Q Does that “xnibit show the location of the discovery wel
in that area?

A Yes, it does. If I may point out, it is 660 from West,
1980 from south, S=ction 1ll, Township 18 South, Range 26 iasi.

; liow, have you made a location of a propesed well to be
drilled?

A Yes, sir. Ue have filed that one with the Commission as

a proposed locetion. No aculvity has been started to dat> other

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
INCORFORATED
GYMNERAL | AW RECOITENS
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3.6691 5.9546




than staking the location. It 1s located 1650 from south line and
1980 from east line, Section 15,

Q Now, on Exhibit No. 1, there are two areas outlined in
red. What are those, Mr. Stipp?

A Those are the proposed gas units as indicated in the ordLr.

Q Do you lnow whether the ownership in those units has beef

pooled or not?

A Yes, sir, they have been.,

Q Now, referring to what has been marked as Exnibit No. 2,
what is that designed to show?

A Exhibit No. 2 is bésically a contour map cn the top of
the present Pennsylvaniag -- if I may jump ahead here, it is con-
toured as indicated on Exhibit No. 3 at the base of the Pennsylvan-
ian and top of the Mississippian. It is a correlation point that

We are able to carry in our geological work in this ares. Overlay-

ing the contour map, colored in yellow, i1s a trend of lower Pennsyl;

vanian Sand. The up depth limit, as marked on here, is a wedgeout
4Cé Ol e produciive sand.

€ fow, ycu say that was contoured on the base of the Pennsyl-
vanian. low was that plcked, Mr., Stiop?

A Those points from which the contours were drawn vere
picked on the electric logs with sdditional interpretations #iven
0y sample logs which are made from cutting and cores,

Q& Well, now, does thaot cxinibit refleet tire presence of g

continuous sang vody, in your opinion?

DEARNLEY . MEiER K ASSOCIATES
INCORPORATED:
GENERAL AW it DRTEHG
ALBUQUERQUE, NEW Mext o
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A The contour map is strictly a map with reference to sea
level on a correlatable point that appears at the base of the
Pennsylvanian. The yellow coleoring indicates our impression of thé
continuity o that sana. |
€& Well, is the sand present in other wells as shown by
your sxhibit?
A There ~--
Q¢  Strsatographic intervals?
A There are approximately six wells controlling the posi-
tion of thls northeast~southwest trend of sand. ZSach of those six
wells has that particular sand in it.
Q- A% approiimately -
A At approximately that same stratographic position.
Q Now, did you make an examination of cuttings and cores?
4 Yes, sir, we have. We have viewed the cores and the
cuttings from all of those wells and find them tobe relatively con-
sistent in nature.
Q@ And in your opinion, are they the same sand? |
4 In our opinion, they are the gome zand.
€ fNow, in your opinion, is the Pennsylvanisn sand vresentg
and continuous throughout Sections 1l and 15, then?
A In my opinion, consistent with the information we have
at hand, it is continuous and present throughout,

. How, referring to wunal nas veen marked as “xhibit lo. 3,

will you state wnat that is?

DEARNLEY .- MFIER & ASSCCIATES
INCORFORAYED
GENERAL Law RFEPIRTERS
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A gxhibit No. 3 is a cross sectlon showing various electrip
and radioactive logs for eight wells in northern isddy County and
extreme western Lea County, iiew Mexico. It covers a distance of
approximately tairty miles in a northeast-southwest orientation.

Q@ Is that shown by an insert map which appears on the sx-

A An insert map of the exnibit indexes the location of the
various wells.

Q Now, what comment do you have to make in connection with|
that Exhibit, Mr. Stipp?

A Pirst of all, let me caution you that these wells are noﬁ
placed on here in regard to distances bstween them, they are simply
arranged for convenience sake, and no relative distance is 1ndicat4h
here. The main object that I may point out here is the continuity
of a sand trend in the lower Pennsylvanian, but it appears 1in five
of the eight wells on the cross section. A secondary sand above
that appears in four and probably five of those wells.

Q Wow, in addition to the wells shown on Exhibit No. 3,
there are some wells closer to the discovery well, are there not?

A 'There are two oroducing wells in the Red Lake Pennsyl-
vanian Pool that are closer.

¢ How, referring to xhibit wo. L, wnat doesg that show?

A  Exhibit No. } is composed of a cross section, being
three electric logs; the Standard of Texas ro. 1 Zvereston the lefi

~

and the two ras oroducing wells on the Humple ko. 1, and Chuck Srufif
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units.

Q Where are those two latter wells located?

A The latter two wells are approximately four to five milﬂs
northeast from the Standard of Texas well.

Q Nouw, does that zZxhibit show information from which you
can conclude a continuous sand body 1s present?

A The zZznibit shows correlations which in our geological
opinion are irrefutable that the zones as marked carry through and
that the sand is one and the same,.

Q Now, on the basis of that information, would you say tad
the sand i1s continuous and present through Sections 1l and 15 in
Township 18, Range 26 East?

A This is a matter of extrapolation. There is a distance
of five miles there. Our impression and interpretation is that it
conkinues to the southwest and west as such that it would cover alll
of Sections 1)y and 15.

Q DNow, upon the drilling < this projected well, you would
nave additionsl infermation from which you could state a better
conclusion, would you not? A That is %rue, sird

R Is there anything else you care to add to your comments,
Mr. Stipp?

A I would like to addé that on #xnibit 3 we have shoun the
sand to ve in the same relalive vosition. I do not mean to indicaf
that it 1s continuous througnout the thirty miles, the trend of ths

sand zone lis continuous. Tnerse may be breaks in the sand itself oq
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in the permezability of the sand.
MR. KELLAHIN: Thatts all the questions we have.
MR. PORTER: Anyone have a question of Mr. Stipp? Mr.
Nutter.,
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. NUTTER:

Q@ Mr.Stipp, is this ~-- on your Exnibit No. b -~ is this
well on the left-hand side of the Exhibit the subject well that had
been completed in the gas -~ A That is correct.

Q I notice on this Exnibit that the drillstem test indi-
cates quite a bit of oil.

A That was condensate, sir, and later production tests re-

vealed there to be -« if I may take some of the engineerts words

here, -- I believe it 1s elaven barrels per minute on the productid
test.

Q This is after soume production on it?

A Yes, sir.

Q@ £leven barrels per minuts per cuvdlc foot?

A Yes.

Q You havent't tested a2s to the permeavility of the sand,

and such as that?
A 1 would prefer HMMr. Graham testify Lo thet.
111, NUTTER: That is all,
RoDIRECT BXAMINATION

3Y MR. HBLLAHTN:

bes

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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Q Mre. gpipp, ere Exhibits 1 through Lt prepared by you or
under your direction and supervision?
A They were. P
qQ I would 1ike to offer at this time Exnibits 1 through h
lin evidence.
GCRO3S EXAHINATIOR
BY MR. DUNNZ
with Union 0il Companys Mr. Stipps

¥R. DUNNH: Devid Dunn,
would you glve us the approximate thickness of the sands in the
sxnibit Hoe h?

three wells shown on yowr
A Yes, sir. They are approximately forty feet thicke
A In all cases.

Q In all cases?
the permeability o jons of

on the thicknes

r the porous port

Q What apbout
g of that porou

that ¢and? Lo you have an estimate

nree wells on that section?

nature in the t
f the

I do not nave an

y data a5 to the permeability o

A

hle wellse.

TTawwn

\LLWM-

wR . DUNNZ That 18 all. ;

Well, is the entire gsafoot sechion permeabbe?
i

MR. NUTTZR S
A The gpandard of Texas Well, on the basis of the microlods

{ are porous and permea‘ole°

approximately 35 fee
YR. MWUTTER? 35 out of WO? A Yes, sire

Pt FUTTER? Tnaniz JoUe
Pit. PORTER: ANY other guestions of the witness? You m

i

w}be excuset.

———— _.__—//_.,-_—
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(Witness excused)
MR. KELLAHIN: Call }Mr. Granem, please.
J. R. GRAHAM

a witness, of lawful age, having been first duly sworn on oath, teir

tified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. KELLAITNK:

Will you state your name, please?

L

J« R+ Graham.
By whom are you smployed, Ir. Grahanm?
Standard 011 Company of Texas.

Wnat is your position?

» o P O

I am senior engineer for the Standard 0il Company of

Texas.

Q Where are you located? A Houston.

Q@ Have you ever testified before the New Mexico 011 Con-

servation Commission?

A No, slir, I have note.

@ Wouid you briefliy siuie your cdueation, experience ang
guoliflcetions az an engineer. Mr, Grahaun?

A Yes, sir. I graduated from Louisiana State University
in 1949 with a Bachelor of Science degree ir petroleum engineering.
Since that time I have been employed by the Standard 0il Company of
Texas in various capaclties; as drilling engineer, production en-

zineer, distrlict engineer, productlion foreman, and I am now senlor

OCARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
INCORPORATED
GEMERAL LAW REFORTERS
ALBUGUERQUE. NEW MEeXICO
3-6691 5.-9546
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engineer for the company.
MR. KELLAH1N: Are the witness! qualifications acceptabl
MR. PORTER: Yes, sir, they are.
Q DHNow, Mr. Graham, are you famlliar with the aprlic
which has been filed in thils case?
A Yes, sir, I am.
Q@ Have completion data on the Zverest No. 1 Well been filéd
with the Commission?
A Yes, sir, it has.
@ Will you briefly outline for the record the completion
iprormation on that well?
A All right, sir. The EverestNo. 1 Well was drilled to an
actual depth of 10,542 feat which is a minus 7,199 feet, plugged
back to 9,267 feet minus 6,925, The casing program is as follows:

13 3/8 and 1,208 feet with 1,Li6l sacks. Circulation was to the

mateiy 120 sackis, 7-~incn casing was cemented at 9,370 feet, which
i1s a subsea of 6,027 feet, cenmented with 600 sacks. po of cement
oy temperature survey on the 7T-~inch was 7,153 feet. The well was

perforated in tne lower Pennsylvanian sand. Perforations are from

9,079 feet to 9,085 feet; from 9,089 feet to 9,093 fect, and from

on October 2nd, 1957, with a calculated oven flow of 23,000,000.
The gas liquid ratio on the test was 90,810 cubic feet per bharrel,

The gravity of the condensatc was 55.8 degrees API.

cellar; 9 5/8 and 3,000 feet with 1,500 sacis circulated =t approxj-

9,095 to 9,116 feet. A back pressure test was conducted on the well

Avauaearaos BN
3.6691
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engineer for the company,
MR. KELLAHINS: Are the witnesst qualifications acceptabl
MR. PORTER: Yes, sir, they are.
Q Now, Mr. Graham, are Jou familiar with the a nliocation
which has been filed in this casge?
A Yes, sir, I am.
Q Have completion data on the Zverest o, ‘1 Well been fileg;

with the Comnission?

Information on that well?

A Al right, sir. The Everest No, 1 Well was drilleg to an

back to 9,267 feet minus 6,925, The casing program is as follows:
13 3/8 and 1,208 feet with 1,46} sacks, Circulation was to the
cellar; 9 5/8 ang 3,000 feet with 1,500 sacics circuiated at approx
mately 130 gacks, 7=-liunecn casing was cemented at 9,370 feet, which
is a subses of 6,027 feet, ~ewmenteg with 600 sacks, Too of cement
by temperature Survey on the 7-inch was 7,158 feet, The well was
perforated in the lower Pennsylvanian sand, Perforations are from
2,079 feet to 9,085 feet; From 9,089 feet to 9,093 feet, and from
G,095 to 9,116 feet. A back Pressure test was conducted on the wel
o October 2nd, 1957, with a calculated oren flow of 23,000,000,
The gas liguid ratio on the test was 90,840 cubie feet per barrel,

The gravity of the condensate wasg 55,8 degrees APT,

B 7
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Are any core analysis avallable from this well?
Yes, sir. We nave a full hole core analysis.

Has that bcen marked as Exhibit No. 52

= o » O

Yes, sir.
MR. KBLLAHIN: We have only one copy of the Peﬁort anal*-
3is available and the witness will submit it as soon as he has com-
pleted his direct testimony.

Q@ (By Mr. Kellahin) Now, what interval was cored on this
well, Mr. Graham?

A A full hole core analysis; 9,070 feet to 9,08} feet, of
which 11 feet were recovered and analyzsd. We have side~wall coreJ
in the interval 9,079 to 9,006 feet. The average permeability in
the 11 feet cored in the upper interval was 51 milidarcies. The
average porosity in this same 11 feet was 7 percent. The average
porosity in the entire 33 feet that we Interpret to be productive,
or net pay, is 18.9 percent, using both side wall samples and the
full hole core.

Q@ In addition to this, did you make any calculstlions on
reserve, Mr. urahaa?

A Yes, sirv.

Q Wnat other informatlon did you use in connection with
that calculation?

A We used a bottom nole pressure at a deoth of 9,065 feei,
that measure veing obtained on a drillstem test as 3,7/ PSI. ‘he

bottom hole tempsrature at 9,065 feet was 153 deprees Hahrenneit.

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOUIATES
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We used the well fiuid gravity of .5617. Porosity average for the
net pay, 18.9 percent. Comate water average for the 33 feet of net
pay, 17.9 percent and from the microlog determined the net pay to
be 313 feet.

Q Now, referring to whet has been marked as Eghiblt No. 6,
what 31s that? —

A That is a Schlumberger electrical log that we ran on the
Ererest No. 1 W:1l.

Q@ On that Exhibit, have ym marked the formation tops, per
foration, casing points, and other information?

A Yes, sir, we have.

Q ©Now, referring to Exhiblt No. 7, the microlog, whac does
that show?

A The microlog is from the Zverestio. 1 Well also and it
indicates an effective pay of 33 feet.

Q HNow, you stated you had made a ressarve calculation. Hav
you made any study of the economics involved in the drilling in thi
area?

A Yes, sir, we have.

Q Have you prepared a swmary, as Ixhibit wWo. 3, on that
informaticen?

A Yes, sir, we have.

@ How, referring to uxnibit No. 3, what dees that atiow?

A That shows that we estimatve the cost of drilling a well

in this -- to this lower Pennsylvanian sand to be 172,706. The

DEARNLEY . ME'ER & ASSGCIATES
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first well cost approximately $297,000. It shows tnat by using the
factors that I enumerated earlier, that the gas reserves under 320
acres are calculated to be twelve billion, two million cubic feet,
that the liquid reserves and condensate are calculated to be 19,800

barrels and that the cost for developing two wells on 320 or 160

well on 320, or 33Lh5.400. It snows that it is vased on our estimat
or at least the -- our usual contract as to minimum taxes with gas
companies, that we can expect to at least be assured of selling ap-
proximately 1 over 3,500 based on resgerves, or in the case of 320~
acre units, about 1,430,000 per day. It shows a gross working in-
terest income to be 322l per day, gross royalty interest income of
$32 per day, a pay out of 2.7 years for a 320-acre unit well, a pay
out of 5.3 years for a 160-acre unit well.

Q Do you consider that an economic operation?

A We considered the 2.7 years as economically feasible.
We could not consider the 5.3 economic reasibly, at least we have
a hard time selling it to owr management.

Q@ Upon what do you base your well costs?

A We pase our well costs on the estimate to drill the Mar-
tin Weil, HMartin iHo. 1 Well, which has been approved and shown on
our BExnibit No. 1.

7 And on what do you base your income Iigures as shoun on
this Bxnible?

4 As stated earlier, we base the incore figures on a cale

acre spacing would, of course, de double the cost of developing one}-

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOUIATES
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of one over 8,500 based on reserves.

Q At what prices?

cents for the condenszte.

VR
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A We can calculate a well price of the well fluid at eliyght

een cents, using sixteen cents for the gas, and approximately two

Q Now, based upon the infomation which is available to
you at the present time, in your opinion, will one well effectively
and economically drain and develop 320 acres?

A Of course, our information at this time on the reservoin
itself is very limited. We do know that the average permeability
in the 11 feet analyzed is 51 milidarcies. Bearing in mind that it

is a gas reservoir with this 51 milidarcies permeacility and the

fact that we think that the two sections are underlined by the

% Pennsylvanian sand, we believe that at this time that a well will

of one year?
A We anticipate tnat ic wiil.
1 a second well to be drilled, and we

3]

s

Lor a verlod of oneg yoary

drain 320 acres, and it will draip it economically.

§ Will additional information be available within a perioq

#e have 1ndicated on wxhibi
contracts
that well, or takins bids Ior contracts, snd plan to start that wel
within the nexi bLwo weeiis. We anticipate drilling adcitional wellf
in the area and telieve that py the end of one year we will have
some additionsl daban Lo base n more svecific reconutendation one.

Q Do you recom.end & temporary sracing order of 320 acres

INCOKFORATED
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A We recommend a one year temporary spacing order.

. Q Now, the application filed in this case recaunends the
creation of a pool to be designated as the Atoka-Fennsylvanian Gas
Pool. Do you have any recommendations as to the area to be Iincludegd

n that Panl?

red ST o g S 4

Jde

A We are recommending that only Sections 1lii and 15 be in-

T cluded at this time in the spacing order and in the Pool delineation.
Q@ In your opinion, is all of Sections 1li and 15, on the

basis of information presently available, vrocductive of gas?

g A On the information that we have at this time we -think

% that it is.

Q Do you have any recormendaiion to make as to well spaciﬂg?

A Our first well is located 5560 from one line and 1680 from

B ——

the other. We have tentatively located and have staked and located),
I should say, our second well 990 from the closest uni®* 1ine and
1530 from the east line of that unit. It is our recommendation thaft
be adopted for this Pocl.

Q In that eveni, it would recuire an excewitlon Tor the
Everestifo. 17

A Yes, sir, thatts correct.

& Do you have any rescormiendation to make to the Commission
as Lo the directions that should be taliten on tne formation of the
driltling units?

io, sir. We recomtiend that the overators be vermittea

-
o
ot

to use any two continutous quarter sections elther in the north-souihh

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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cormmendcation
is that there are séveral small tr

racts in the aresg,

and we think it
would be easiepr to pool if we had that flexibility.

or eagt~west direction, and the main Feason for that rec ‘

Q@ Is there anything
mony, Mr. Graham?

£ :\YO ’ SiI‘ .
Q Wers wxhibits No. 5 through 38 prepared‘by Jou or under
your direction?

A Yes, sir,

5 through 8 inclusive,

gxhibits will be
ad.nlitt edo

8ir, by the Cole Laboratjry.

MR. KELLAHIN:

MR. PORTER:

Witnout objection,

BY FR. PORTER

I believe You offepreg

ed that core?

e
~NZ, JuT,.

MR. KELLAHIN. That igs all,

'ROSS EXALTHATTION

& HMr. Graham, I donty: velieve T got your

estimate of the
cost of

£ conpleting the well,

A Ve estimate, fop the secong well

s 172, 700,

“ ; - Fo e Y 7 )
< ‘tThatts on Jour nxnibit o, 2?
DEARNLEY . MEER & AssociaTeg
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A Yes, sir, thatts right.

Q You say that at the end of the year you will have addi-

tional information?

A Yes, sir, we hope to. VWe have not signed a gas contract

well for drilling; the Mariin No. 1 Well., We intend to use the gas

both as drilling fuel and as drilling fluid, and we will obtain somp

the area and hope to have additional wells completsd at the end of
the year.

Q When do you expect to complete your HMartin No. 17?

A The starting date, I estimate some time in the latter
part of April, and we hope to complete it in about forty days,
drilling days.

MR. PORTEY: Does anyone have a gquestion of Mr. Graham?
Hr. pHutter.
QUESTIONS BY MR. NﬁTTER:

& Mre. Graham, what evidence do you nave that one well will
drain 320 acres?

A S8ir, we nave very little evidence other than the permea-
bility characteristics of tne soand and the fact that it is a gas
reservoir, and if it underlies 320 acres, it is our opinion that it
will draln based on permeapility and characteristics of the reser-
voir and if the fluids are {ree to move tnroughout the 320 acres.

& Are there any other pools in the scoutheast ilew lexico,

information there, and we intend to continue cur drilling program ip

and not made a connection yet, but we do intend to produce this fir%t
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any other gas pools, completed in this same sand?

A It 1s my understanding that tie two pools to the north-
east, one bpelng the Red Lake Pool, and the other, I believe the =~
I cantt recsll the name of it, but it is about twelve miles to the
northéast, is completed in this comparable Pennsylvanian sand, yes,
sir. Smpire Pool, I believe, is the one that 1s twelve miles to
the northeast.

Q Has the Commission approved 320 acres for any of those
pools?

A I believe they have fbr tne @mpire Pool, on a temporary
basis. I am not sure of the expiration of that one year order, buii
that was a pool operated by Pan American. It is my understanding
that they approved an order for that pool, Empire FPool.

Q Mr. Graham, you havent't determined that the order in the
Empire Pennsylvanina Pcool has expired?

A No, sir, I am not familiar with it other than what I
have been told. They told me they approved a one vear order for
that pool. I dontt think it has expired.

i. PORTER: I think an inveatigetion wovld vrcve that
the order has expired.

Q (By Mr. hubtter) I want to ask a couple of questions herfe
regarding the income that you have here. What is the {ormula that
you base your income per day on?

A Well, the only basis we have at this time is a minlmum

pay contract that i1s offered Lo us by the gas company, at least

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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those are the figures we use to determine our pay outs, and we
usually are offered 1 to 8,500 based on reserves. In otherwords,
they will take one cubic feet per cay per 0,500 cublc feet of re-
serves. In some contracts we have 7,200 in 10,000, but we use 1
to 8,500 as the usual.

Q And you have estimated your reserves under each tract

based on core analysis?

A Yes, sir. We have estimated reserves based on core anal?—

sis and other factors. The 1 to 8,500, ir. Nutter, is an average

daily minimum take that the gas pipeline company assures us that they

will take when we sign a contract.
Q Has the gas under this lease been contracted?
A Ho, sir, it has not.
Q@ So you dontt know that the minimmuum take clause would be
1 to 8,500 in this particular case?
A No, sir, we dont't know that it would be 1 to 8,500.
Q You dontt know that the gas purchaser will take only the
as t

4
o

-~
~

[

LAl

s required by the minimm take clanse?

A That iIs vorreci. 1
assure us they will take, a daily average minimum, and we use those
to calculate,

¢ And 1f they take more than the minimum take, you have a
vetter pay?

A Yes, sir, thatts corrccte.

MRo NUTTER: That 1s all.

Dearuiey - Mol & ASSOUIATES
INCORPORATED
GENERAL | aw REFPORTERS
ALBUQUERQUE. NeEw MeExico
3-6691 5-9546




QUESTIONS BY MR. UTZ:

it.
A 990 and 1930, sir. 990

from the more distant unit line.

continuous duarter sections.

LT A -

A Yes, sir,

Q Now, 88 to your pool del

A 1l and 15, yes, ein,

Q Of course, the east halfl

320-acre basis, a unit be approved?

Q What was your footage recommendation?

Q 1980 from the section line, then?

A Yes, sir, that?'s correct.

Q No closer than 990 from the unit linef?

A Yes, sir, thatts correct.

Q@ Do you have a recormendation as to which way you would
like these units to run?

A No, sir. I stated earlier timt we had no recummendation

thatts correct.

sections, or have you recommended Sections 1l and 15?2

oroven, Is it?
A Yes, sir, thatts correct.
Q

Wouldntt it ve more practical to Include a pool of 320

acres I'or your present completed kverest Well, and on that Pool, on

I didn®t quite ge

from the closest unit line, 1980

ineation, you want all of bthe

of 1l and all of 15 is not yet

It is not wnroven,

GENURAL Loaw

ALsyQUERrRqUE N
26691
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that they could either go east-west or north-south, just so they arp
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A Yes, sir, that would be satisfectory with us. We base
the two-section pool delineation -- that 1s based on our geologisttis
opinion that it underlies both sections, and we are assuming that
it would be productive, but I am not famlliar enough with our pro-
cedure here to know whether you take in a larger area than that al-
ready proved or not, so we juét use the two~section because our
geologlist bellsves it 1s underlein by Pennsylvanian sand.

R If the geologlist proved to be wrong, they would be the
ones -- |

A Yes, sir, that's right. They have besen wrong before.

MR. UTZ: Thatfs all I have.
QUESTIONS BY MR. COOLEY: |

Q Mr. @rzham, you state that the only evidence you have
based the opinion that one well will arain 320 acres is oa the core
analysis?

A Yes, sir, the core analysis, 51 milidarcy permeability,
mainly showing that there could be geed moveiicnt of fluld in the
reserveir and the fact that we lhink the sand is continuous over 32@
acres. Of course, we will have to have additional information to
really give a final opinion on that. At this time all we have 1is
one well and all we can use 1s the permeability characteristies and
the fact that 1t is underlsin,

v Tnis onc core Involving this one small area 1s the only
core that has been taken in this entire pool, is 1% not?

A Well, thatts correct. ‘Ynese egre the only vermeavllity

DEARMLEY - MEIER & ASSOUIATES
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measurements that have been made.

%
We have measured porosity in the

side walls since, but we have not measured permeability except in

the 11 feet. Thatls the information we have.

Q@ Do you have any evidence that there is not wide variatiqh?
A No, sir, not at this time. We have no reason to beliew
that there 1is or is not.

Q@ On your assumpition that one w

ell will drain 320 acres,
wouldnti

it be necessary that you know where the well is located on
the 320-acre traci?

A Of course, the best way to determine -~ in my opinion,

one of the best ways to determine 320-acre tracts is to take inter~

ference tests, but on one well you will have to assume it is drain-

ing ratably 320 acres around the well.

Q@ Thatts my point.

Under your proposed spacing plan, T

believe, it would permit the drilling of a well 990 from the sectio

e}
line and 1980 feet from the section line ~-

A Yes, sir.
\ @ -- which would permit the drilling of both wells in the
‘ single section in either the south half or the north half, would iY
\ not?
E A Yes, sir. 1t wduld permlt drilling two wells in this
\ section.

<

inn yowr opilaion, would this type of spacing natlern e
as efficient as spacing the wells one either in the northeast quar-

ter and one in the southuwest quarter or one in the nortnwest quartdr

DearNLEY . MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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and one in the southeast guarter? Would you have better drainage

25

in that section if you staggered your wells in that fashion?

the wells equally spaced in the reservoir, and I would have to

answer yes to that, yes,
Q Concerning the payout that you had calculated on these

cxmn VT
WO LLDy Wi
160-acre well, so long as the gas purchasers nominate given quanti+

ties of gas for this particular pool, wouldn't that

until such time as the area should become prorated?
anmong operator&

to calculate payout based on reserves becanse companies,

it is my understanding, take based on reserves where you
t is based on

eral pools and nave to limlit their takes.

reserves, so we usually calculats our payout baased

think it is a valigd calculation.
ats

A Of course, the most efficient drainage would be to have

sir.

5¢3 years for

2.7 years for 320-acre well, and

+lhnd+ hasdnes
“w M\ld.&‘.o -

be immaterial

I think it is coomon practice
at least

A Yes, sir.
have sev~-

o

I think
-

on reserves.

Q Well then, what is the purpose of coming

with 320-acre spacing with us 1ittle
well would drain 320, why would it not be as feasible to remain on

3

160-2cre spacing until 1t is prorated so that you can take whatevey

you could sell, produce wiate.er you could sell?
in a reservoir, uWe look at the

A 1 salc that initially,
2 bl0-acre unit in a 6l0-acre

you ave

Ir
it, you are going to sell the

takes bDased on reserve.
under standd

reservoir and you nave four uwells in
1

same amouni of gas, in my opinion, or at least 1t lg n

DEARMNLEY - MEIER & AS3OLIATES
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ing, that you would sell if you had two wells In the reservolr be-
cause the gas company takes takes ©vased on reserveg, taat!s the
way 1t is.

Q Provided two wells will drain 6407

A Yes, sir, and I don't think I can make a dogmatic state-
ment that one well will draih ﬁhat. With the limited evidence we
have, we think it will.

MR. COOLEY: That is ail.
QUESTIONS BY MR. UTZ:

Q Mr. Graham, according to the way I understand your foot-
age location recommnerdation, your Martin KNo. 1 is already on a non-
standard location, is that correct, sir?

A No, sir, I think we loceted it 990 from the north and
1980 from the sast line of the section.

Q 1650 from the soutnh 1line of the section?

A Yes, sir. Well, those arc minimum distances, of course,
and I understood that you located on minimum pasis, that you are

permitted to locate at least 990 and 1980 from the lines. My under

Q

standing is that as long as you are 99U [iom one linc and 1930 from
tie other you are within spacing.

Q How close do you wani to come to tne section line?

A 1930.

Q You are 1650 on itue southr line now?

A Oh, I see, Hel ., 1t uwoculd heve to be L3936 feon the long

sid2 of the unit ana 990 rvou the sno»t side of the ur’t. 1 dontt

DEARNLEY - MEIER & ASSCCIATES
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see how you could locate 1930 from the long slde without belng 660

from the snort side.

Q Wouldntt it be more practical for it to be 1050 and no
closer than 990 from the unit line?

A From unit lines?

Q@ Yes.

A Yes, sir, that would be the same thing.

It would £it better?

» O

LA
dive

Yes, sir. that weuld £

W e

MR. UPZ: Thatl's all,
MR. PORTER: Mr. Utz, I will ask you a guestion. What

do you mean by unit line?

MR. UTZ: I mean the proration unit.

M. PORTER: The 320-acre unit line?

MR. UTZ: Yes, sir.

MR. PORTER: ‘imank you.
Anyone else have any questlons? Fr. liutter,
QUESTIU.S 3Y MR. WUTTER:
Q While we are on thaleg, Lo your puritin o. 1 well in a
standafd location accordling to the vroposed ruleus?
A I Jjust thougnt we talied about that, bun
& I dontt mean the tlartin, the sveresu?
A Ho, sir, it is not.

& Tnat is an exceotion?

A Yes, sir, we askecd tnat orlzinally.

27
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M. NUYTER: Thank you.

MR. PORTER: Any furtner questions?

The witness may be excusad.

MR. DUNN: May I ask s question?

MR.PORTER: Yes.

QUESTIONS By MR. DUuil:
2 Do you know of any well in southeastern New Mexico or in

_—

the vicinity of your test that is producing oil from this same sand

or correlative sand?

A Sir, I know of none, if I can answer that way.

Let me word the question a little differently. Are all

Q

of the correlative saunds that you are acquainted with producing

sand?

A I am only acquainted witnin the Immediate area of the

Everest, and I understand there is not one within fowr miles produc-

ing from this sand and that?s my best knowledge of this sand, withi

four miles.

MR. DUNW: That is al

 ad

L3

MRe PORTER: Anyone else have a question? 1 believe you

T

offered your Exhibits alrcady,.
MR. RELLAHTIN: Yes.

Iil. PORTER: The witness may be excused.

PORTER: Any furteer

.
il «
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Pennsylvanian.

this case? ANy statements?
MR. KELLAHIN:

information we have with one well available,

inportant, 1 sm certain, on the basis of the

available to this pool, and the witnesses have # stified that in

their opinion i1t will effectively drain 320 acres, and due to the

economics involved, and the fact, as pointed

not even & 3%° connection 1in there as yet, W

for a period of one year ;s fully justified until the acditiuvial

information can be obtained, at wnich time W
the Commission and present out testimony Lo

acre spacing should be continued or not.

should be developed on a uniforwm 320-acre pattern until such time

as the agdltional information 1s available D
situation and pecause of the coOre informatio
which is avajilable and does indicate that on
develop 320 acres, and development on 160 ac
could and probably presult in waste. fnank y
yR. PORTER: Anyone else nave any
this case?

David pun witih Union
make tne statement that we do nov nave any &

yvicinity of ghis test. Ve do have considera

lCounty that we consider to pe prosnective of

Vie nave complebod o nT well
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It tne Commission pleass, obviously, the

But meanwhlle, the pool

which we think is

information wnich js Yool

out, that there 1is

£

e fesl o temporary orade

o will return before

show whetner the 320~

ecause of the economic
n and ocher snformation
e well will drain and
res, in tne meanwnile,
O

thing Luriie?d

-
(4
o]
ta
4]

<4
b
=

0il., Union wishes to
creaze in the jinmediate

ole holdings in nady

sas in tne lower

goubtn of thlis area &
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T

1980 feet between wells. 3¢ a location formula, 100 percent acre-

considerable distance from the lower Pennsgylvanian sand. We feel

that 320 acres is the bare minimum and we question the advisability

of draining anythiny less than a 640-acre spacing for the economic
development of gas in Eddy County, New Mexico from the lower Penn
vaniane.

MR, ANDERSON: Donald Anderson of lMalco, ilalco also owns
considerable acreage in Budy County along thls sporatic trend and
owns an interést in three wells, and we protest the inclusion of th
east half of Section 1llj, in which we are part owners of & hO-acre
tract, on the basis that the gas production may be so marginal that
you cannot justify less or a smaller spacing than 6L0 acres. We
are the wmajor owners in the two wells northeast, four miles north-
east, and feel strongly that those two wells are so marginal that
they should not have been drilled unless the spacing is granted on
a 6l40-acre basis, and we would very strongly object at this time to

inciuding the east half of Section 1l in the area.

=)

. PAYIE: We have a telegram here that I would like to
read.

"Sinclair 0il & Gas Company wishes to concur with Standard
of Texas in the following: Rules {or Abtoka Penn Gas Pool. Ho. 1,

320~acre vproration units with units to run either nortn-soutn or

east~west. 2: well spacing to be 990 feet from lease lines and

age. Sinclair 0il & Gas Company, Signed Layton A. YWeob,!

M. PORTER: Anything further to be zaid? If not, we

DEARNLEY . MEIER & ASSOCIATES
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My Commission kxpires:

October 5, 19460.

will take the case under advisement and proceed -- take up next
Case 1l42l.

CERTIPICATE

— A A S S—— G o e o am— —

STATE OF WNEW MEXICO )

) ss

I, J. A. TRUJIELO, Notary Public in and for the County of
Bernalillo, State of New Mexico, do hereby certify that the fore-
going and attacined Transcript of Proceedings before the New MHexico
0il Conservation Commission was reported by me in stenotypé and
reduced to typewritien transcript under my personal supervision,
and that the same is a true and correct record to the best bf my

knowledge, skill and ability.

T
WITKESS my Hand and Seal this § day of , 1958
in the City of Albugquergue, County of Bernalillo, State of New

Mexicoe.

Notary Publd
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ATION COMM\SS‘ON

olL CONSERY
p. O. BOX 871

SANTA FE. NEW MEXICO

May 5. 1958

Mr. Jason Keliahin
P.O. Box 1713

Santa Fe, New Mezxico
Dear Mr. Kellabhin:
On behalf of your client, Standard 01l Company of Texas,
jssued May 5, 1958, by the
heard on

§ Order Rr-1171
i 1419, which was

very truly yours.

A. L. Porter. Jr.
Secretary - Director

bp
Encls.




i evidesce addused, and being fully adrvised in the premises,

BEFORE TER OIL COOMBERVATION COMMISSION
OF THE BTATE OF NEW MEXICO

CASE MO, 1419
Order ¥o. R-1171

TENPORARY POOL RULES FOR SAYD POOL.
ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY TRE COMMISSION;

This caume came on for hearimg at 9 o'cloek a.m. on April
16, 1688, at lsswel]l, Faw Mexico, before the Gil Conservation Com-
mission of New Maxico, bereimafter referred to as the "Commission."

NV, on tats S day of my, 1958, the Commission, a
quorum beiag preseat, v comsidered the applicatioa and the

FINDE:
(1) Tiat duve public notice having been given as roqnirod
by law, the Commission has jurisdiction of this cause and the

subject matter thereof.

(2) That the appiicant, Standard Oil Company of Texas,
sesks an order creating the Atoka-Peansylvaniaa Gas Mool with
vertical limits consisting of the Pennsylvanian formmtioa and
borizontal limits comsimsiiag <f the W/2 Section 14 and 8/2 Section
15, Towmship 18 SBouth, Range 26 East, NMPN, Eddy County, New Mexicqg.

(3) That the applicant further proposes that temporary
320~acre spacing be established in the said proposed Atokn-Pemnsyl-
vanian Gas Posol.

(4) That only one well has been drilled to the Pennsyl-
vanian formation in the vicinity of the proposed Atoka-Penusyl-
vanian Gas Pool, being the applicant's Everest Well No. 1 in the
SW/4 of maid Section 14,

(5) That the completion of the above-described Everest
Well No. 1 does pot warrant the creation of a pool of the nsgnitud*
proposed by the applicant but that it dces warrant the creation
of a pool consisting of the SW/4 of said Section 14.




-2
Cane No. 1419
Order Fo. R-1171

(8) That the applicant has failed to prove that ome
well will sceomemically amd eXficieatly drain 320-acres in tl-
Atoka-Pessayivanian Gas Fool or thet there is any justificatiea
for the entablisdewut of temporary 330-acre spacing ia mid peol
in the abseice of sech preof.

(7) That the tien, spacing, and drilling of wells
iz the Atoks-Posmnyl ummmuum
umz«ume«:ﬂmgM

IT I8 TEEREFOAR ORDERED:

(1) That a nev pool for the produstion of gas frem the
Penssylvanian formmtion bs and the same is hereby created amd

ted a8 a8 Alcix-Penmavivanian Gas Pool coasistiag of the
fellowiag described area:

TOMMSNIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, XNPN
Kectlea 14 BW/&

() That the application of Stamndard O0il Company of Texas
for the entablisimeant of temporary 320-acre spaciag iz the Atoks-
Feommaylvanian Gos Peol, be nnd the same is herehy deasiled. ,

(3) That the operation spacing, amd drillizg cf all
walls in the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Pool shall coatinwe to he
governed by the provisioss of Rule 104 of the Cosmissien Rules

and Regulatieasn.

DONE at Banta Fe¢, Nev Mexico, on the day and year hersim-
above desigaated.

S8TATE OF NEW MEXICO
CIL CONSERVATIOK COMMISSION

S L et

EDWIN L. MECHEN, Chairman

g

MURRAY E. MORGAN, Hn-p,r
//\ ) ) .) .

/ o ¢
l ( diilee X
A. L. pon'mn Jr./ Mi#mber & Becretary




BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

APPLICATIORN OF STANDARD OIL
COMPANY OF TEXAS FOR AX ORDER
CREATING AN ESTABLISHED GAS
POGL FOR PENNSYLVANIAN PRODUC-

TION AND ESTABLISHING 320~ACRE CASE No. ' /2.

GAS UNITS IN SECTIONS ik AND 15, s

TO 18 s.-’ R. 26 E., mDY COUNTY, [ @]

NEW MEXICO =
APPLICATION

Comes now Standard 011 Company of Texas and applies to the
011 Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico for
an order sstahlishing 5 dssignated gas pool for production
from the Pehnsylvan!an Sand of gas and gas condensate in
Township 18 South, Range 26 East, K.M.P.M., Eddy County, New
Mexice to be designated as the Atoka-Pennsylvanian Gas Poel,
and for the asdoption of pool rules on a temporary basis fer a
period of one year providing for uniform spacing and estadblishe
ment of 320-acre drilling units for said poel, units to consist
of adjacent quarter-sections, with well locations fixed at
N990 feet and 19580 feet from outside boundaries of said units,

'/N/\_,/‘""
and for such other and further orders as the Commission may

determine proper.
| In support of thls aprlication, the applicant would show
the Commission:

5 1. Thst applicant has completed its J. H. Everest No. 1Y

well at a location 1980 feet from the South line and 660 feet
| from the West line of Section 1k, Township 18 South, Range 26

l East, N.M.P.M,, Eddy County, New Mexico, as a gas condensate

producer in the Pennsylvanian sand,

1 2. That applicant is the operator of a 320-acre tract pod ~
ed in the Pennsylvanian Sand,and consisting of the W 1/2 of

| Section 14, T, 18 5., R. 26 E,, Eddy County, New Mexico.

| 3. That applicant is the operator of a 320-acre pooled

trect in the Pennsylvanian Sand and consisting of the & 1/2 of

Section 15, T. 18 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.,M,, Eddy County, New Mexico




4. That anplicant has numerous leases in and adjoining
Sections 14 and 15, in T. 18 8., R. 26 E., Eddy County, N. M.

5. That applicant plans to drill its Martin No. {1 well in
the MWW 1/% SE 1t/ of Section 15, T. 18 S., R. 26 E., for pro-
duction from the Pennsylvanian Sand, BEddy County, New Mexico.

6. That on the basis of information presently available,
it is believed that one well will efficiently and economically
drain and develop 320 acres in the area involved, and that the
establishment of 320-acre drilling units for the pool is in
the interests of conservation, will prevent waste, and that
correlative rights will be protected.

WHEREFORE applicant requests that this application be set
for hearing by the Commission at the regular April, 1958, hear-
ing of the Commission, or as soon thereafter as may be possible,
and that after notice and hearing asprovided by law, the Com-
mission enter its order creating a new gas condensate pool for
Pennsylvanian production, fixing drilling units at 320 acres,
establishing well locations, and such other and further orders
as may be proper.

Respectfully submitted,

STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF TEXAS

By:

KELLAHIN And FOX

P. 0. Box 1713

Santa Fe, New Mexico
Attorneys for Applicant

qu\sL-HM
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SUPPLEMENTAL DOCKET:

No. 11-58

REGULAR HEARING APRIL 16, 1958

Qil Conservation Commission 9 a.m., Elks Club, 200 North Richardson Avenue

CASE 1424:

April 3, 1958

ga

ROSWELL , NEW MEXICC

Application of Humble Oil and Refining Company for an unorthodox well
location. Applicant, in.the above-styled cause, seeks an order
authorizing an unorthodox oil well location for its Federal-North Kirt-
land Unit Well No. 1 at a point 1230 feet from the North line and 998
feet from the East line of Section 19, Township 30 North, Range 14
West, San Juan County, New Mexico, said well to be drilled as a

wildcat to the Dakota formation.
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Santa Fe, New tlexico
April 5, 1958

0il Conservation Commission
P. 0. Box 871
Santa Fe, New Mexico

Re: Case 1419 Application of Standami of Texas
Oe-tlemen: Hearing of April 16, 1958

The above captioned application provides for the
creation of the Atoka-Pennsylvania Gas Pool and t¢ govern spscing
in Township 18 S., Range 26 E.

vhile I have no objection to the creation of the Pool,
I do herein refgister objection to the spacing of 320 acres. My
reason for this is that there are adjacent holdings too small to
qualify under the 320 acre spacing and this would result in draining
from these holdings where drilling would not be permitted and con-
seguently no production.

It is my understanding that there is a producing oil
well in Sectian 14 of the above township with sufficient production
to qualify this area as an oil field,. This is a deep well and it
is my understanding also that in this same township there are numerous
shallow wells being worked for oil and that any gas flows are not
being conserved but allowed to waste,

Thank you for giving consideration to this matter.

Yours very truiy,

W 2
‘WP H. SWEARINGEN

Box 93, Santa Fe
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EX# S (hse #1949 CORE LABORATORIES, INC

Petroleum Re:ervoir Engineering
DALLAS 1. TEXAS

September 3, 1957

REPLY TO
». O, BOK 38
MIDLAND. TEXAS

Standard Oil Company of Texas
Box 1660
Midiand, Texas

Attention: Mr. J. P. Jones

Subject. Core Analysis
Everest No. 1 Well
Wildcat
Eddy County, New Mexico
Location: Sec. 14-T185-R26E

Gentlemen:

Diamond coring equipment and water base mud were used to core the
interval, 9027 tc 9112 feet, in the Everest No. 1. Samples of recov-
ered formation on which analysis was desired were selected as directed
by representatives of Standard Oil Company of Texas, were quick-
frozen to preserve fluid content, and were transported to the Hobbs
laboratory for analysis. Percussion type side wall samples were taken
beiween 3076 and 9114 feet, and these samples were analyzed for poros-
ity and fluid content at the Monahans laboratory. The results of all
analyses are presented in this report. '

Pennsylvanian formation analyzed between 9070 and 9084 feet exhibits
favorable residual liquid saturations, and is interpreted to be gas pro-
ductive at points of measurable permeability. The average permeabil-
ity of the 11 gas productive feet in this zone is 5] millidarcys, and the
total observed natural productive capacity is 561 millidarcy-feet, prob-
ably adequate to support satisfactory rates of production without the
necessity for treatment. The average porosity of this interval is 9.5
per cent, and the average empirically calculated connate water satura-
tion is 30 per cent of pore space. Average core analysis data for this
interval have been summarized on page one.
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Standard Oil Company of Texas Page Two
Everest No. 1 Well ‘

that ihe i-“:rmation furnished with thig report will prove useful in mak-

ing a pPreliminary evaluation of the Pennsylvanian formation analyzed
from this well, '

Very truly yours,

Core Laboratories. Inc.

RS 8‘7’”‘“"9""@:)

R. S. Bynum, Jr.,

District Manager
RSB:JDJ:sw

7 cc. - Addressee




.MILLIDARCY®

Form F-11B

CORE LABORATORIES, INC.
Petrolewm Reservoir Engmeering
CALLAS. TEXAS

Page 1 of 1 Lle WP-3-860 FC
Well Everest No. 1

CORE SUMMARY AND CALCULATED RECOVERABLE OIL
FORMATION NAME AND DEPTH INTERVAL: Pennsylvanian 9070.0-9084.0

+ or Gont VERED FROM AVERABE TOTAL WATER SATURATION:
CTve (eTERvAL COvERED 14.0 PER CENT OF PORE BPACE 30.9
‘cone AVERAGE CONNATE WATER SATURATION: ’
:‘:;IU%D N AVERANRES l 1 . 0 PER CENT OF PORL BPACE (c) 30
AVERAGE PERMEASILITY: 51 OIL GRAVITY: *AP|
WMILLIDARGCYS

PRODUCTIVE CAPALITY: 561 ORIGINAL SOLUTION OAR-DIL RATIO:
MILLIDARCY-FEET CUBIC FEET PER BARREL

9 5 ORIGINAL FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR:

o SARRELS
AVERAGE POROSITY: AIR CENT SATURATED OiL PER SARREL BTDCK-TANK OiL

AVERAGE RESIDUAL Oil. BATURATION: 0 0 CALCULATED ORIG!NAL STOCK-TANK OIL IN PLADE:
PER CENT OF PORE BPACE . BARRELE PER ACRE-FOOT

Calculated maximum solution gas drive recovery is barrels per acre-foot, assuming production could be
continued unti} reservoir pressure declined to zero psig. Calculated maximum water drive recovery is

barrels per acre-foot,assuming full maintenance of original reservoir pressure, 1005 areal and vertical coverage,
and continuation of production to 100% water cut. (Please refer to foomotes for further discussion of rccovery estimates.)

FORMATION NAME AND DEPTH INTERVAL:

€T OF CORE RECOVEREZD FROM AVERADE TOTAL WATER BATURATION:
:z-uv: INTERVAL . PER CENT OF PORE SPACE

FEET OF CORE AVERAGE CONNATE WATER BATURATION:
INCLUDED IN AVERADES PER CENT OF PORE SPACE
AVERADE PERMIASILITY: OIL GRAVITY: ®API

PRODUCTIVE CAPACITY: ORIGINAL BOLUTION GAS-0OIL RATIO:
MILLIDARCY-FEET CUBIC FEET PER BARREL

DRIGINAL FORMATION VOLUME FACTOR: BARRELS

AVERAGE POROSITY: PER CENT BATURATED OiL PER RARREL BTOCK-TANK QIL

VERAGE RESIDUAL CliL SATURATION: CALCULATED ORIGINAL STOCK-TANK OIL IN PLACE:
3:5 CENT OF PORE liuc:.:A N BARRELS PER ACRE-FOOT

i
i
|

Calculated maximum solution gas drive recovery is barrels per acre-fcot, assuming preduction could be
continued until reservoir pressure declined to zero psig. Calculated maximum water drive recovery is

barrels per acre-foot,assuming full maintenance of original reservéir pressure, 1007 areal and vertical coverage,
and continuation of production to 100¢. water cut. (Please refer 1o footnotes for further discussion of recovery estimates.)

(c) Calculated {¢) Estimated (m) Measured (*) Refer to attached letter.

These recovery estimates represent theoretical maximum values for soiution gas and water drive. They assume that production is
started at original reservoir pressure; i.e., no account is taken of production to date or of prior drainage to othes areas. The eyccu of
factors tending to reduce actual ultimate recovery, such as economic limits on oil production rates, gas-oil ratios, or water-oil ratios,
have not been taken into account. Neither bave factors been considered which may result in actual recovery intermediate between solu-
tion gas and complete water drive reccveries, such as gas cap expansion, gravit, drainage, or partial water drive. Detailed predictions
of wltimate oil recovery to specific abandonment conditions may be made in an engineering itudy in which consideration is given to
overall reservoir characterisiics and economic factors.

These analyses, opinions or interpretations are based on observations and materials supplied by the client to whom, and for whose exclusive and confidential use,
this report is made. The interpretations or opinions expressed represent the best judgment of Cors Laboratories, Inc. (all errors and omissions excepted) ; but

Core Laboratories, Inc., and its officers and employees assume ro responsibility and make no warraniy or representation as to the productivity, proper operstion,
or profitableness of any oil. gas or other minersl well or sand in conmection with which such report is used or relied upen.




Area, acres

Rumber of wells

Total investment, dollsrs

Gas reserves, MMCF

Liquid reserves, barrels
Total gas production » MCFPD
Gross W.I. income, dollars/day
Gross R.I. income, dollars/day

Payout, years
Rate of return, ¢
Profit to investment ratio




